
CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham.  S60  
2TH 

Date: Monday, 1st December, 2014 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended 
March 2006).  

  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for absence  
  

 
4. Declarations of Interest.  
  

 
5. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 3rd November, 2014. (Pages 1 - 8) 
  

 
6. Receipt of petition.  

 
 

• A631 Maltby.   
 
7. Receipt of tenders.  

 
 

• To note the action of the Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive 
Neighbourhoods in opening two tenders on 18th November, 2014.   

 
8. Petition - East Dene Park, Park Road, East Dene, Rotherham. (Pages 9 - 13) 
  

 
9. Housing Investment Programme 2014/15 Budget Virements. (Pages 14 - 19) 
  

 
10. Town Centre Sequential and Impact Tests: Good Practice Guidance. (Pages 

20 - 37) 
  

 
11. Amendments to Pedestrianisation Orders - Whinney Hill Dalton. (Pages 38 - 

40) 
  

 

 



12. Ravenfield Primary School, Moor Lane North - proposed trial of a part-time 
20mph speed limit. (Pages 41 - 44) 

  

 
13. Proposed 'No Waiting at Any Time' - Fitzwilliam Street, Festival Road, Stump 

Cross Road, Cross Street & Fitzwilliam Avenue, Wath upon Dearne. (Pages 45 
- 67) 

  

 
14. Proposed ' No Waiting at any Time' and' Limited Time Waiting' restrictions, 

Worrygoose Lane, Reresby Drive & Lathe Road, Whiston. (Pages 68 - 83) 
  

 
The Cabinet Member authorised consideration of the following two reports 
received after the deadline in order to progress the matters referred to: - 

 
 
15. Exemption from Standing Orders: -  Consultant support to assist the Council to 

make a funding application to Sheffield City Region Investment Fund for the 
Waverley Link Road. (Pages 84 - 86) 

  

 
16. Exemption from Standing Orders - Maintenance Contract for Buchanan 

Computing Accsmap Software. (Pages 87 - 88) 
  

 
17. Exemption of the Press and the Public.  

 
 
The following items are likely to considered be in the absence of the press and 
public as being exempt under Paragraphs 3 and 5 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act, 1972 (financial affairs relating to an individual, including 
the Council, and information relating to legal professional privilege).   

 
18. Review of Supported temporary accommodation for Homeless Families and 

Young People. (Pages 89 - 99) 
  

 
19. Property Searches Litigation. (Pages 100 - 104) 
  

 
20. Date and time of next meetings: -  

 
 

• Additional meeting arranged for: - Monday 8th December, 2014, to start 
at 10.00 a.m. in the Rotherham Town Hall; 

• Scheduled meeting: -  Monday 12th January, 2015, to start at 10.00 a.m. 
in the Rotherham Town Hall. 

 



30ACABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS - 03/11/14 
 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS 
Monday, 3rd November, 2014 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Godfrey (in the Chair); Councillors N. Hamilton and Wallis. 

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors  .  
 
 
53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  

 
 No Declarations of Interest were made.   

 
54. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 29TH 

SEPTEMBER, 2014.  
 

 The minutes of the previous meeting of the Cabinet Member for Safe and 
Attractive Neighbourhoods held on 29th September, 2014, were 
considered.  
 
Resolved: -  That the minutes of the previous meeting be agreed as an 
accurate record.   
 

55. MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE RMBC TRANSPORT LIAISON 
GROUP HELD ON 24TH SEPTEMBER, 2014.  
 

 The minutes of the RMBC Transport Liaison Group meeting held on 24th 
September, 2014, were considered.  
 
Resolved: -  That the minutes of the meeting be noted.   
 

56. AREA ASSEMBLY CHAIRS.  
 

 The minutes of the Area Assembly Chairs meeting held on 15th 
September, 2014, were considered.  
 
Resolved: -  That the minutes of the meeting be noted.   
 

57. RECEIPT OF A PETITION - PARKING NEAR TO BROOM VALLEY 
COMMUNITY PRIMARY SCHOOL.  
 

 A petition containing 70 signatures regarding parking issues, potential 
incorrect signage and calling for a crossing person or a pelican crossing 
outside of Broom Valley Community Primary School was received.   
 
Resolved: -  That the petition be received and forwarded on to relevant 
Officers in the Environment and Development Services Directorate to 
investigate the matters and report back to the Cabinet Member in due 
course.   
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS - 03/11/1431A 

 

 

58. REPRESENTATIVES ON PANELS, WORKING GROUPS AND 
OUTSIDE BODIES.  
 

 Resolved: -  That the following appointments of representatives on 
Outside Bodies for the 2014/2015 Municipal Year be confirmed: -  
 

• Rotherham Licence Watch Steering Group – Councillor Dalton, 
Chair of the Licensing Board (no change); 

• South Yorkshire Trading Standards Committee – Councillor 
Godfrey, Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive Neighbourhoods 
and Councillor Hoddinott, Deputy Leader; 

• Environmental Protection UK Yorkshire and Humberside Division – 
Four representatives from the Improving Places Select 
Commission (no change); 

• Warm Homes - Councillor Godfrey, Cabinet Member for Safe and 
Attractive Neighbourhoods; 

• Women’s Refuge – One representative from the Improving Places 
Select Commission (no change); 

• Sheffield City Region Housing and Regeneration Board - Councillor 
Godfrey, Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive Neighbourhoods.   

 
59. LOCAL PLAN STEERING GROUP - MEMBERSHIP OF THE 

COMMITTEE.  
 

 Resolved: -  (1)  That a seat for a member of the Opposition be made 
available on the Local Plan Steering Group. 
 
(2)  That the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board be given the 
option to co-opt an Elected Member to act as substitute to Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board on the Local Plan Steering 
Group.   
 

60. ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REVENUE BUDGET 
MONITORING REPORT TO 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2014.  
 

 Consideration was given to the report presented by the Principal Finance 
Officer (Financial Services, Resources Directorate) that outlined the 
Environment and Development Services revenue budget monitoring 
report to 30th September, 2014.  The Principal Finance Officer provided 
information relating to the Services that fell within the Safe and Attractive 
Neighbourhoods portfolio.   
 
The submitted report provided a forecast to the end of the 2014/2015 
financial year based in income and expenditure to end of September, 
2014.   
 
The overall Regeneration, Planning, Customer and Cultural Service was 
forecasting an overall under-spend of £240,000, against a net budget of 
£6,729,000.  Certain areas were reporting over-spends due to staffing 
cost pressures and for the provision of a paypoint and post office 

Page 2



32ACABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS - 03/11/14 
 

 

collection service.   
 
Other service areas within the overall Service were reporting under-
spends due to Cabinet approving budget virements and as an impact from 
the moratorium on non-essential spend.   
 
Resolved: -  That the latest financial projection against the budget for the 
year based on actual income and expenditure to the end of September, 
2014, be noted in respect to the areas relevant to the Safe and Attractive 
Neighbourhoods portfolio.   
 

61. AREA PARTNERSHIPS TEAM AND CORPORATE COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT SERVICE UPDATE.  
 

 Consideration was given to the report presented by the Business and 
Commercial Programme Manager that provided an update on the 
proposed merger of the Area Partnership Team and the Corporate 
Community Engagement Service.  It was proposed that the Service would 
be known as the Neighbourhood Partnerships and Engagement Service 
and would provide a corporate hub for community engagement and 
involvement activity, including the co-ordination of activity and remove the 
potential for duplication of effort.   
 
The proposal had been initially considered by the Cabinet Member for 
Safe and Attractive Neighbourhoods on 16th June, 2014 (Minute No. J8 
refers).   
 
The submitted report outlined the staff and trade union consultation 
process that had taken place.  
 
The proposal included a re-alignment to ensure that each of the 11 
deprived communities within the Borough had an allocated 
Neighbourhood Development Officer.  This would require staff relocation.  
Under the proposal, two Community Engagement Officers would transfer 
to other services.   
 
The proposed final structure of the re-organisation had been set out in 
appendix 3 and would become operational on 1st December, 2014.  The 
submitted report outlined how the service would be funded through the 
General Fund revenue budget and the Housing Revenue Account.     
 
Discussion ensued on the proposed merger and the following issues were 
raised: -  
 

• The ways in which the creation of the role of Neighbourhood 
Development Officer would mean that there was one point of 
contact for each deprived area and remove the potential for 
duplication; 

• The funding ratio between the General Fund and the Housing 
Revenue Account.  

Page 3



CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS - 03/11/1433A 

 

 

 
Resolved: - (1)  That the report be received and its content noted.   
 
(2)  That the next steps in relation to the implementation of the merger be 
noted.   
 

62. HOUSING INVESTMENT PROGRAMME P6 SEPTEMBER 2014.  
 

 The Business and Commercial Programmes Manager outlined the report 
he had submitted that gave an overview of the Housing Investment 
Programme at Period 6, September, 2014.   
 
The Housing Investment Programme ensured that the Council’s Capital 
programme between 2014/2015 to 2016/2017 was aligned to the strategic 
priorities and vision for Rotherham.   
 
The submitted report gave a detailed budget breakdown and explanations 
of works taking place in 2014/2015 noting where there was variance 
against the set budget and the forecast outturn.   
 
The report also outlined how any changes had been reflected in the 
Housing Revenue Account’s 2014/2015 outturn revenue forecast.  There 
had been a change utilising Housing Revenue Account prudential 
borrowing to fund property acquisitions to predominately funded through 
Right to Buy receipts.   
 
Discussion ensued and the Cabinet Member and Advisers commented on 
the information provided: -  
 

• Had consideration been given to using temporary/removable pods 
when extensions were required as a disabled adaptation in the 
private sector?  
 
This had been an option in the past but did not always represent 
best value for money.  Where a ground floor adaptation was 
required the first assessment was undertaken on existing spare 
rooms.  

 

• The disabled adaptations (public sector) budget was under-spent.  
Was there a backlog of works awaiting start?  

 
Not currently, Rotherham’s current waiting time had increased to 6-
7 weeks (from 4 weeks).  Delays were mainly due to the caseload 
of Occupational Therapy.  Rotherham’s waiting time compared 
favourably to local neighbours.  

 

• It was disappointing that the budget for opportunity / strategic 
acquisition had been removed and ring-fenced for 2015/2016 as 
there was a current need for additional housing stock.   
 

Page 4



34ACABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS - 03/11/14 
 

 

Resolved: -  (1)  That the report be received and its content noted.  
 
(2)  That the budget virements and carry-over as detailed in the report be 
approved: -  
 

1. £100k from HRA Enabling works (HRA Land) to fund Lady 
Oak Flats; 
2.  Opportunity/ Strategic Acquisitions - £1,299,000 carried 
forward  into 2015-16; 
3.  Doe Quarry Lane, Dinnington - £46,492 transfer to reserves 
for  future projects; 
4.  Bellows Road - £192,343 carried forward to 2014/2015. 

 
63. NEIGHBOURHOODS GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 

MONITORING 2014/2015.  
 

 Consideration was given to the report presented by the Finance Manager 
for Neighbourhood and Adult Services (Financial Services, Resources 
Directorate) that provided a financial forecast for the Neighbourhoods 
General Fund to the end of March, 2015, based on actual income and 
expenditure to the end of September, 2014.   
 
The forecast for the financial year 2014/2015 was for an overall under-
spend of £716,000 against the approved net revenue budget of £667,000.  
 
The submitted report outlined the net budget, forecast outturn and 
variance for each service area.  The report also provided a commentary 
regarding the under and over-spends within each service area.   
 
The main under-spend related to the Housing Options service area, 
namely the Furnished Homes Service due to increased demand, cost 
effective procurement of furniture and higher than anticipated staff 
turnover.   
 
Discussion ensued on the operation of the Furnished Homes service.   
 
Resolved: -  That the financial projection against budget for 2014/2015 
based on actual income and expenditure to the end of September, 2014, 
be noted.   
 

64. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT  BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 
2014/2015.  
 

 Consideration was given to the report presented by the Finance Manager 
for Neighbourhood and Adult Services (Financial Services, Resources 
Directorate) that provided a financial forecast for the Housing Revenue 
Account to the end of March, 2015, based on actual income and 
expenditure to the end of September, 2014.   
 
The overall forecast was that the Housing Revenue Account would 

Page 5



CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS - 03/11/1435A 

 

 

outturn on budget with a transfer from working balance reserves of 
£159,000, which was a reduction of £1.281 million against the approved 
budget.  
 
The submitted report outlined the expenditure and income commitments 
within the Housing Revenue Account.  Expenditure was forecast to 
outturn at a decrease in spend of £1.134 million due to less completions 
of minor voids than budget, although the actual number was increasing 
due to tenants moving to smaller properties due to Welfare Reform.  
Income was forecast to outturn at an over-recovery of income of 
£147,000.   
 
The report outlined the risks and uncertainties inherent to the Housing 
Revenue Account, including a rising inflation rate, not achieving the 
vacancy factor, a change in the numbers of repairs and maintenance 
voids, achievement of rental income and the potential impairment of fixed 
assets.   
 
Resolved: -  That the financial projection against budget for 2014/2015 
based on actual income and expenditure to the end of September, 2014, 
be noted.   
 

 
THE CABINET MEMBER AGREED TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING REPORT 
RECEIVED AFTER THE DEADLINE IN ORDER TO PROGRESS THE MATTERS 
REFERRED TO: -  
  
65. BROOM ROAD, ROTHERHAM - PROPOSED NO WAITING 

RESTRICTIONS - MONDAY TO FRIDAY 9.00AM TO 4.00PM.  
 

 Consideration was given to the report presented by the Transportation 
and Highways Projects Manager that outlined the outcome of statutory 
consultations about the proposed no waiting Monday to Friday 9.00 a.m. 
to 4.00 p.m. restrictions on the A6021 Broom Road. 
 
Minute No. G14 of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and 
Development, held on 14th June, 2013 refers (Proposed Accessibility 
Improvements A6021 Broom Road, Rotherham).    
 
The submitted report outlined the content of the scheme approved in 2013 
and, accordingly, Statutory Notices had been displayed on the street and 
in the local newspaper.  In response, a nine signature petition had been 
received relating to the potential for an increase in non-residential parking 
on Broom Crescent should the restrictions be introduced on the A621 
near the Rotherham Hospice.  The petitions had attributed this to the 
additional community services ran at the Hospice and also alleged that 
the additional services and practices provided may be exceeding the 
terms of the existing planning consents.  Petitioners asked that the 
implementation of the restrictions be delayed until the Hospice staff 
parking could be addressed.  

Page 6



36ACABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS - 03/11/14 
 

 

 
The report outlined how some on-street parking had been reduced in the 
vicinity of the Hospice to accommodate the termination of the sheltered 
parking area and the cycle lane together with the pedestrian refuge. The 
displaced vehicles were likely to have migrated to other places including 
Broom Crescent and the opposite carriageway.  In order to accommodate 
the uphill cycle lane and a sheltered parking area the width of the south 
western carriageway opposite the Hospice had been reduced.  Any 
vehicles that parked there were now interfering with the safe and free flow 
of traffic and to the egress to driveways on the south western side of 
Broom Road.   
 
It was acknowledged that that implementation of the further parking 
restrictions on the south west side of Broom Road may cause a further 
migration of parking that could have an impact on Broom Crescent.  It was 
recommended that, due to the need to maintain a safe and free-flow of 
traffic on this route, the restrictions be implemented at the earliest 
opportunity.  
 
It was proposed that, once the restrictions had been implemented, their 
full impact on Broom Crescent be assessed and potential traffic 
management measures could be fully investigated.  A copy of the petition 
had been passed to the Planning Service regarding the issues raised 
relating to compliance with planning consents.  The Transportation Unit 
had offered to meet representatives of the Hospice to discuss and advise 
on the practicalities of providing additional staff parking within the Hospice 
site.   
 
Discussion ensued on the report containing the investigation and 
proposed response to the petitioners.  Matters discussed were: -  
 

• Consideration given to the viability of cycle lanes and where they 
were placed, including the traffic legislation relating the use of 
cycle lanes by motorists; 

• The utilisation of Travel Plans for regular visitors/users of 
Rotherham Hospice; 

• The availability of residential parking on Broom Crescent.     
 
Resolved: - (1) That the proposed no waiting Monday to Friday 9.00 a.m. 
to 4.00 p.m. restrictions, as shown on drawing 126/18/TT607 be 
implemented.  
 
(2)  The effects of those restrictions on non-residential parking on Broom 
Crescent be monitored and investigate other traffic management 
measures to mitigate the effects of this, if required.   
 
(3)  That the petitioners be informed accordingly.   
 

66. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND THE PUBLIC.  
 

Page 7



CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS - 03/11/1437A 

 

 

 Resolved: - That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended March 2006) (information 
relates to finance or business affairs). 
 

67. PROCUREMENT OUTTURN - HIGH SECURITY COMMUNAL 
ENTRANCE DOORS FOR FLATS.  
 

 Consideration was given to the report presented by the Business and 
Commercial Programme Manager that outlined the open tender process 
that had been undertaken in respect of the last phase of renewal to 
upgrade the communal entrance doors to multi-tenure blocks in 
Rotherham.   
 
Three compliant bids had been received and had been evaluated on a 
70/30 cost/quality basis.  The works would be undertaken in the 
2014/2015 financial year.  
 
Resolved: -  That the tender submitted by Bamford Doors be approved.   
 

68. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING: -  
 

 Resolved: -  That the next meeting of the Cabinet Member for Safe and 
Attractive Neighbourhoods take place on Monday 1st December, 2014, to 
start at 10.00 a.m. in the Rotherham Town Hall.   
 

 

Page 8



 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive 

Neighbourhoods 

2.  Date: 1st December 2014 

3.  Title: Petition – East Dene Park, Park Road, East Dene, 
Rotherham 
 

4.  Directorate: Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 

 

5.  Summary 
 
An E-Petition has been received from residents of East Dene, Rotherham 
raising concerns about the levels of anti-social behaviour and vandalism in 
East Dene Park, Park Road, East Dene Rotherham.  The petition was signed 
by two people. 
 
The petition is attached as Appendix 1. 
 
The petition was acknowledged and a discussion has taken place with the 
lead petitioner in respect of the issues raised and the action that will be taken 
to address those issues. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 

• That the Cabinet Member for Safe & Attractive Neighbourhoods 
notes the action taken in response to the petition. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO DLT 

Page 9 Agenda Item 8



7.  Proposals and Details 
 
7.1  Background 
 
The East Dene Children’s Play Area, known locally as ‘The Walk’ is a public 
recreational area situated between Park Road and Chestnut Avenue. The site 
is totally surrounded by houses with the rear gardens ending at the boundary 
to the area.  
 
The area consists of a Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA) and a play area 
consisting of children’s play apparatus including, slides, swings and 
roundabout mounted on a ‘safety surface’. The children’s play area is 
surrounded by metal fence panel’s approximately one metre high, however a 
number of these panels have had to be removed due to vandalism resulting in 
them being ‘pushed’ out of their fixing brackets. 
 
The actual site is the responsibility of Housing & Neighbourhood Services 
whilst the play equipment is maintained by Environment & Development 
Services (EDS). 
 
Since September 2013 to October 2014 the Police have recorded six 
complaints in respect of the play area including litter and drug paraphernalia, 
drug use, assault, and a ‘domestic/family’ incident. 
 
Checks made with EDS have ascertained the following:   
 

• A large amount of glass has been removed on pretty much every 
inspection of the play area (every 2- 3weeks for a visual inspection, 
every quarter for an operational inspection) for the past 2 years. 

• The majority of the metal fencing panels that surround the play area 
have been damaged and have been removed as a result of vandalism 
(around 20 panels of bow top metal fencing). The panels have been 
retained and could be replaced however the ‘weak link’ is the quality of 
the brackets that attach the panels to the metal posts. 

• 6 swing seats in the play area have been replaced over the last 2 
years, most of which was due to vandalism.  

• Currently there is a swing seat missing but this is a maintenance issue 
rather than due to vandalism.  

 
In general the majority of the play equipment is in a reasonable state of repair 
as is the safety surface. 
 
7.2 Previous Interventions 
 
As long ago as 2008, the Rotherham South Area Assembly established a 
Task & Finish Group to address issues on and around the play area. The 
group included Elected Members, Police, Council and local residents. Some 
of the activity commissioned and actioned through the group included: 
 

• Area Assembly secured Housing Market Renewal (HMR) funding to 
install CCTV covering the play area. This was installed in 2008 and 
remains in place today.  

Page 10



• Area Assembly secured EDS support to upgrade lighting & later 
allocated some devolved budget to install lighting for the MUGA. 

• Area Assembly/Streetpride devolved budget paid for bollards to 
prevent vehicles congregating on and around the area.  

• The Area Assembly & Community Sports secured external funding for 
sports coaches to deliver provision in The Walk during the summer 
months. 

• Green Spaces provided funding for the prompt removal of graffiti and 
the repair of damaged play equipment. 
 

7.3 Action taken and proposed response to the petition 
 

• A site visit has been carried out and contact has been made with the 
petitioners by the councils Crime & Anti-Social Behaviour Manager. 

• Contact has been made with the local Safer Neighbourhood Team, 
who is already aware of the ASB issues on site. They will ensure that 
the area is made subject of regular high profile patrols. 

• On Wed 29th October officers from the SNT, Housing, Area Assembly 

& Community Organisers conducted a door to door survey of the 50 

properties backing onto The Walk. 

 

o 31 properties provided a response  

o 13 properties had no issues 

o Of the other 18, the main issues were as follows 

o Glass smashed  - particularly around the swings 

o General noise – seems to be bigger problem in summer 

o Drug use – people smelling cannabis 

 

• Partners have committed to writing to every property to reaffirm our 

ongoing commitment to the area as well as updates in respect of CCTV 

& tidying up. Housing's current Service Level Agreement with 

Streetpride means that The Walk is litter picked on a weekly basis. In 

the first instance there will be an evaluation of the adequacy & 

effectiveness of existing provision 

• The content of the petition has been discussed at the Safer 

Neighbourhood Team Briefing and will remain on its agenda to allow 

the situation to be monitored. 

• Regular contact will be maintained with the petitioners by the councils 

Crime & ASB Manager to update them of the action being taken 

• Arrangements are in place for additional cleaning visits to be made – 

particularly focussed on the removal of any broken glass. 

• A request has been made for the South Yorkshire Police CCTV 

‘Technical Officer’ to carry out a full evaluation of the installed CCTV 

camera on site and make any necessary recommendations in respect 

of its effectiveness and what, if any, improvements could be made. 

• The Walk CCTV was excluded from the renewal of the ‘3G’ free airtime 

in Aug ’14 because of a fault on the 3G modem. Remote viewing was 

Page 11



not considered necessary at this location due to the low number of 

reports. The recorded images should still be downloadable onsite via 

Wi-Fi, & the Wi-Fi connection was working fine when previously tested. 

• The Area Assembly team are working with St James Community Group 

who are keen to litter pick The Walk. There may be an application for a 

£250 grant from Rother Fed to support this. 

• A number of joint Test Purchase Operations are to take place to 

combat the sale of alcohol to youths in the locality.  

• Arrangements have been made for the removed metal fencing panels 

to be re-fitted around the children’s play area using a more appropriate 

and robust fixing system. This repair will be funded through the 

Housing & Neighbourhoods Repairs and Maintenance budget. 

8.  Finance 
 
The estimated cost of the repair/replacement of the fence panels is £800.00 
and will be funded through the Housing & Neighbourhoods Repairs and 
Maintenance budget. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
There are no risks or uncertainties associated with this project. 
 
10.  Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 

• Ensuring care and protection is available to those that need it the most.  

• Helping to create safe and healthy communities. People feel safe and 
happy where they live. 

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
The Petition received from East Dene residents is attached as Appendix 1 
below. 
 
Contact Name:  
 
Steve Parry,  
Crime & ASB Manager,  
Housing & Communities,  
Neighbourhood and Adult Services. 
 
Tel:   01709 (3)34565 
E-mail:  steve.parry@rotherham.gov.uk  
 

 

 

 

Page 12



Appendix 1 

 

E-Petition – East Dene Park (The Walk) East Dene, Rotherham. 

 

We the undersigned petition the council to Save East Dene Park from 
anti- social behaviour and vandalism. 

‘More often than not when you take your children to this park there are groups 
of young men swearing and smoking weed while sat on the children’s 
equipment, on several occasions I have had to take my child away because 
they don’t move which is very upsetting’ 
 

‘Broken glass all over the child’s play area making it unsafe, 1 swing missing, 
several fence panels missing and obscene graffiti and litter’ 
 

Please make this park a safe and pleasant place to take our children. 
 

2 people signed this E-Petition. 

 

Page 13



 

  

 
 

1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive 
Neighbourhoods 

2.  Date: 1 December 2014 

3.  Title: Housing Investment Programme 2014/15 Budget 
Virements 

4.  Directorate: Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 

 
5.0 Summary 
 

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for budget virements within the 2014-
15 Housing Improvement Programme. 

 
6.0 Recommendations 
 

That Cabinet Member approves the revised budgets detailed at Appendix  A for the 
2014-15 Housing Investment Programme. 

 
7.0 Proposals and Details 
 
7.1 The budget process that led to the original Capital Programme for 2013/14 to 

2016/17 ensured that the Council’s capital investment plans were aligned with its 
strategic priorities and vision for Rotherham. 
 
In order to maintain that strategic link, and make best use of the capital resources 
available to the Council, it is important that the programme is kept under regular 
review and where necessary revisions are made. 
 
The table below provides an overview of the current approved HIP programme for 
the period 2014-15. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER 

Page 14 Agenda Item 9



 

Description Original 
Budget 
2014-15 £ 

Original 
Budget + 
Approved 
Slippage 

Revised 
Budget 
2014-15 £ 
(approved 
14 July 
2014) 

Revised 
Budget 
2014-15 
(approved 
1 
September 
2014) 

Revised 
Budget 
2014-15 
(approved 
3 
November 
2014)  

Refurbishments 11,995,000 12,626,687 13,197,786 13,197,786 13,197,786 

Other Capital 
Projects 

13,563,000 13,318,239 13,143,239 13,143,239 13,243,239 

Fair Access to 
All 
(Adaptations) 

3,389,000 3,389,000 3,389,000 4,093,660 4,093,660 

Regeneration/ 
Neighbourhood 
Renewal – 
Public Sector 

2,250,000 2,250,000 2,050,000 2,050,000 1,950,000 

Regeneration/ 
Neighbourhood 
Renewal – 
Private Sector 

971,000 1,314,074 1,484,074 1,484,074 1,245,239 

HCA New build 2,836,000 2,836,000 2,836,000 2,836,000 1,537,000 

Total 35,004,000 35,734,000 36,100,099 36,804,759 35,266,924 

 
 
7.2 Details 
7.2.1 Housing Improvement Programme 2014-15 Capital Work Virements 
 

Appendix A provides a detailed budget breakdown by scheme for 2014-15, project 
officer forecasts and proposed virements to budgets based on officer forecasts at 
Quarter 2 and known risks to the programme at this time. Detailed in the remainder 
of the report are key changes to budgets at this time and should be read in 
conjunction with Appendix A. A further detailed update on a project by project basis 
will be provided to Cabinet Member at Quarter 3. 

 
7.2.2  Other Capital Works –  Budget   £13,243,239 
     Revised Budget £13,245,140 
  

The sections below, breakdown individual changes within the Other Capital Works 
budget. 

 
7.2.3 Environmental Works –  Budget   £1,612,000 
     Revised Budget £1,718,901 
   

This budget will fund a variety of projects throughout the borough currently subject 
to consultation with tenants and members. Works funded through this scheme will 
include bin store improvements, shrub bed enhancements, off street parking and 
footpath re-surfacing etc. The increase in funding is to cover additional schemes 
now to be delivered within the current financial year, namely security improvements 
at Wharncliffe Flats. 

 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

 
 
7.2.4 Empty Homes –  Budget   £2,900,000 
    Revised Budget £2,700,000 

 
This budget is to fund major voids where the cost exceeds £4,000. This often 
occurs when a previous tenant has refused decency works so properties require 
new kitchens and bathrooms etc. prior to re-letting. The reduction in budget is due 
to lower volumes of major voids.  

 
7.2.5 Electrical Board & Bond –  Budget   £150,000 
      Revised Budget £120,000 
 

This is a demand led service and is to fund electrical improvement works to 
properties (e.g. consumer units, rewires etc.) following fixed wire electrical testing. 
The reduction in budget is reflective of lower volumes of properties requiring full 
rewires following fixed wire electrical tests.  

 
7.2.6 Asbestos Removal & Testing – Budget   £380,000 
      Revised Budget £290,000 
  

This budget is to fund asbestos surveys and removals to properties that are 
receiving planned capital improvement works. The reduction in spend is due to 
lower demand for surveys and removal works. 

 
7.2.7  Boundary Wall Treatments –  Budget   £100,000 
      Revised Budget £140,000 

 
This budget is to fund improvements to boundary/ retaining walls and footpaths 
throughout the borough. The increased budget requirement is following receipt of 
tender returns. 

 
7.2.8  Community Centre Improvements –  Budget   £100,000 
       Revised Budget £300,000 
 

This will fund essential upgrades to lighting and fire equipment within the centres. 
The increase in budget of £200,000 will be used to fund conversion of 4 
Neighbourhood centres into 6 flats following their closure in January 2015.  

 
7.2.9 External Insulation (EPC Improvements) –  Budget   £50,000  
        Revised Budget £25,000 

 
This will fund ad hoc top ups of insulation to external wall cavities and lofts. The 
reduction in budget is due to reduced demand. 

 
7.2.10 Community Centre Improvements – Budget £100,000 
  

This will fund essential upgrades to lighting and fire equipment within the centres. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

7.3  Regeneration/ Neighbourhood Renewal Private Sector  
 
7.3.1  Canklow Phase 1 & 2 –  Budget   £690,000  
     Revised Budget £350,351 
 

This is a multi-year programme of activity to regenerate an area within Canklow 
through Housing Market Renewal. The project is focused on demolition, buy back 
and refurbishment of public and private sector properties in the area.  The reduction 
in budget is due to delays in acquisition and demolition of remaining properties on 
the site. 

 
8.0 Finance 
 
8.1 The table below details how the Housing Improvement Programme will be funded if 

revised budgets are approved. 
 

Funding Amount £ 

Grants   1,546,654 

Revenue Capital Contribution Outlay   8,513,030 

Prudential Borrowing HRA   1,457,538.57 

Capital Receipts RTB   1,002,663 

Capital Receipts RTB 1 for 1        79,461.43 

Capital Receipts      651,131 

MRA 21,567,589 

Total 34,898,825 

 
9.0 Risks and Uncertainties 
 

The Capital Programme is funded through a number of sources: borrowing, capital 
grants & contributions, revenue contributions and capital receipts. Any uncertainty 
over the funding of the Programme rests on confirmation that grants/contributions 
and capital receipts continue to be available in coming years. Where funding 
sources are volatile in nature the risks will be managed by continually keeping the 
programme under review. 

 
10.0  Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 

The HIP supports the Corporate plan priorities and is central to the longer term 
Housing Strategy: 

 

• Making sure no community is left behind 

• Helping to create Safe and Health Communities 

• Improving the environment 
 

The preparation of the Medium Term Financial Strategy incorporating a profiled 
capital programme and the associated revenue consequences, together with 
regular monitoring, highlights the Council’s commitment to sound financial 
management. 

 
11.0 Background Papers and Consultation 
 

Dave Richmond, Director of Housing and Neighbourhoods, 
Stuart Booth, Director of Financial Services and Budget Holders have been 
consulted during the preparation of this report. 

Page 17



 

 
Reports to Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive Neighbourhoods 

 
Report Author 
 
Paul Elliott, Business and Commercial Programme Manager; Neighbourhoods and Adult 
Services, paul.elliott@rotherham.gov.uk; Ext. 22494 
 
 
 

Page 18



Appendix A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

B C D E F G H I J K

HIP PROGRAMME 2014-15 - POSITION AS AT PERIOD 7

Approved 

Budget

Proposed 

Budget Variance

Manager's 

Forecast

Variance 

(Over + / 

Under -)

%age          

(Over + / 

Under -)

£ £ £ £ %

REFURBISHMENT / IMPROVEMENTS

Refurbishment 12,986,378 12,986,378 0 13,110,159 123,781 1%

Windows 211,408 211,408 0 288,042 76,634 36%

REFURBISHMENT / IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL 13,197,786 13,197,786 0 13,398,201 200,415 2%

OTHER CAPITAL WORKS 0

Empty Homes 2,900,000 2,700,000 -200,000 2,700,000 0 0%

Replacement of Central Heating / Boilers 3,761,000 3,761,000 0 3,761,000 0 0%

Replacement of Communal Doors (High Security) 890,754 890,754 0 890,754 0 0%

Environmental Works 1,612,000 1,718,901 106,901 1,712,324 -6,577 0%

Electrical Board & Bond 150,000 120,000 -30,000 118,698 -1,302 -1%

Community Centre Improvements (5 Year Programme) 100,000 300,000 200,000 300,000 0 0%

Boundary Wall Treatments 100,000 140,000 40,000 140,000 0 0%

Asbestos Removal & Testing 380,000 290,000 -90,000 290,000 0 0%

Flat Door Replacement 75,760 75,760 0 75,760 0 0%

District Heating Conversions 1,800,000 1,800,000 0 1,800,000 0 0%

EPC Improvements 50,000 25,000 -25,000 25,000 0 0%

New IT System 273,725 273,725 0 476,625 202,900 74%

Lady Oak Flats 500,000 500,000 0 553,923 53,923 11%

General structures 650,000 650,000 0 650,000 0 0%

Lift Replacement 0 0 0 0 0 NA

OTHER CAPITAL PROJECTS TOTAL 13,243,239 13,245,140 1,901 13,494,084 248,944 2%

ALL WORKS TO PROPERTIES TOTAL 26,441,025 26,442,926 1,901 26,892,285 449,359 2%

FAIR ACCESS TO ALL

Public Adaptations 2,078,000 2,078,000 0 1,994,794 -83,206 -4%
Private Adaptations 2,015,660 2,015,660 0 2,092,730 77,070 4%

FAIR ACCESS TO ALL TOTAL 4,093,660 4,093,660 0 4,087,524 -6,136 0%

REGEN. / NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL

PUBLIC SECTOR

Non-Traditional Investment 1,400,000 1,400,000 0 1,470,917 70,917 5%

New Build DPU Bungalows 300,000 300,000 0 300,000 0 0%

Enabling works - HRA Land development 0 0 0 0 0 NA
Garage Site Investment 250,000 250,000 0 250,000 0 0%

Public Sector Sub Total 1,950,000 1,950,000 0 2,020,917 70,917 4%

PRIVATE SECTOR

Dinnington Transformational Change (RHB) 1,200 1,200 0 1,200 0 0%

Monksbridge Demolition, Dinnington 80,000 80,000 0 80,000 0 0%

Doe Quarry Lane, Dinnington 43,508 43,508 0 43,508 0 0%

Canklow Phase 1 & 2 720,531 350,531 -370,000 350,531 0 0%
Bellows Road Service Centre Clearance 400,000 400,000 0 400,000 0 0%

Private Sector Sub Total 1,245,239 875,239 -370,000 875,239 0 0%

REGEN. / NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL TOTAL 3,195,239 2,825,239 -370,000 2,896,156 70,917 3%

OTHER PUBLIC SECTOR

HCA NEW BUILD

Opportunity Acquisition 1,537,000 1,537,000 0 1,537,000 0 0%
Carry Over from 11-12 New Builds 0 0 0 0 0 NA

OTHER PUBLIC SECTOR TOTAL 1,537,000 1,537,000 0 1,537,000 0 0%

SUB TOTAL 2 8,825,899 8,455,899 -370,000 8,520,680 64,781 1%

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 35,266,924 34,898,825 -368,099 35,412,965 514,140 1%

Funding Split:

Public 32,006,025 32,007,926 32,444,996 437,070 1%

Private 3,260,899 2,890,899 2,967,969 77,070 3%

Total 35,266,924 34,898,825 35,412,965 514,140 1%

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\2\4\AI00070420\$jbyueosb.xlsx

Page 19



 
 
 
1. Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive Neighbourhoods 

2. Date:  1 December 2014  

3. Title: Town Centre Sequential and Impact Tests: Good Practice 
Guidance  

4. Directorate: Environment & Development Services and 
Neighbourhoods and Adult Services  

 
5. Summary 
 
This report provides a brief summary of the Town Centre Sequential and Impact 
Tests: Good Practice Guidance. This is intended to provide additional guidance to 
policies in the adopted Core Strategy, where sequential and impact tests are 
required for planning applications for main town centre uses.   
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 

a. That Cabinet Member notes the contents of this report and the preparation of 

robust Good Practice Guidance to guide the preparation and decision-making 

of future planning applications and setting out clear requirements for 

applicants when submitting their proposals. 

 
b. That Cabinet Member supports the publication of the Good Practice Guidance 

as a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. 

 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Page 20 Agenda Item 10



7. Proposals and Details 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out how planning applications 
for main town centre uses in edge-of or out-of-centre locations should be considered. 
The adopted Core Strategy (September 2014) sets out in more locally specific detail 
how these policies will be applied within Rotherham. 
 
Core Strategy Policy CS12 establishes the retail centre hierarchy within Rotherham. 
It also provides the more detailed guidance for applying sequential and impact tests 
including the local threshold for undertaking the impact test. Crucially it encourages 
early engagement with the Local Planning Authority, indicating that applicants should 
agree with the Local Planning Authority the scope of the evidence and analysis to be 
submitted to ensure that this is proportionate to the scale and nature of the proposal. 
 
Prior experience of determining planning applications for town centre uses reveals a 
wide range in the quality of information provided by applicants to satisfy the 
sequential and impact test requirements. The guidance attached at appendix 1 has 
been produced to assist applicants by clearly setting out how national and local 
planning policy will be applied, and the information which should be provided by 
applicants. 
 
The guidance comprises a number of sections which address: 

• When a sequential or impact test is required  

• Agreeing the scope of the assessment (setting out the factors which will be 

taken into account, such as the size, type and characteristics of proposed 

development and the operator’s business model) 

• Carrying out a sequential test, including: 

o Establishing an appropriate catchment  

o Deciding which designated centres should be assessed (recognizing 

the roles that different types of centre play within Rotherham) 

o Identifying the sites to be considered  

o Undertaking the assessment (how the availability, suitability and 

viability of sites should be considered) 

• Carrying out an impact test (required by the locally set threshold for sites of 

500 sqm (gross) or more) 

• How the assessments will inform planning decisions (how the 

assessments may inform any planning decision, including the use of 

appropriate planning conditions) 

The Guidance is intended to ensure that applicants receive consistent advice 
regarding sequential and impact test assessments, and clearly establish the 
Council’s expectations. It provides a document which can be a material 
consideration when making planning decisions; however it will not have the status of 
a Supplementary Planning Document. The Council is preparing further detailed Local 
Plan policies relating to main town centre uses and retail centres within Rotherham 
through the Sites and Policies document. It is considered that once this document is 
adopted then the Good Practice Guidance could form the basis for a comprehensive 
draft Supplementary Planning Document taking account of all relevant Local Plan 
policies. 

Page 21



 
8. Finance 
The Good Practice Guidance has no direct financial implications for the Council. The 
costs associated with the determination of planning applications will continue to be 
met through Planning department budgets and planning application fees. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
• The Localism Act and National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) express a 

strong presumption in favour of sustainable development. Our UDP policies 
only continue to have any weight where they are in accordance with the NPPF.  

 
• Rotherham’s Core Strategy is now in place and helps provide an up-to-date 

planning policy framework for the Borough’s future growth and development. 
Progress on the supporting Sites & Policies document is vital to complete the 
Local Plan and bring forward the development sites required to implement the 
Core Strategy. Supplementary Planning documents provide additional guidance 
on how policies will be implemented. 

 
• Having a complete Local Plan in place will provide a steer for any 

neighbourhood plans that may emerge under the provisions of the Localism 
Act.  

 
• Failure to make progress with the Local Plan risks delayed provision of the new 

homes and employment opportunities that the Borough needs. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
The implementation of the Local Plan will make a positive contribution to all of 
Rotherham’s Regeneration priorities. The Adopted Core Strategy and supporting 
documents, including supplementary planning documents, will further the objectives 
of the Corporate Plan and support the delivery of the Rotherham Sustainable 
Community Strategy by:  
 
• providing sufficient good quality homes  
 
• ensuring well designed, decent affordable housing  
 
• providing employment land to meet the needs of the modern economy and 

support sustainable communities through access to employment opportunities  
 
• promoting the “town centre first” policy approach to help the regeneration and 

renaissance of Rotherham Town Centre and other town, district and local 
centres within the borough. 

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
Appendix 1 Town Centre Sequential and Impact Tests: Good Practice Guidance 
 
Contact name: 
 
Ryan Shepherd, Senior Planning Officer, 01709 823888, 
ryan.shepherd@rotherham.gov.uk  

Page 22



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
www

Tow

w.rothe

wn Ce

rham.go

entre

ov.uk 

Sites

e Seq
Go

s & P

quent
ood 

Polic

tial &
Prac

ies F

& Imp
ctice 

Oct

Final 

pact T
Guid

tober 

Draf

Tests
dance

2014

 
ft

s
e 
 
 
 
 
 

4

Page 23



1 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
Introduction ................................................................................................................. 2 
When is a sequential or impact test required? ............................................................ 2 
Agreeing the scope of the assessment ....................................................................... 3 
Carrying out a sequential test ..................................................................................... 4 

Establishing an appropriate catchment ................................................................... 4 
Deciding which designated centres should be assessed ........................................ 5 
Identifying the sites to be considered ...................................................................... 6 
Undertaking the assessment ................................................................................... 8 

Carrying out an impact test ......................................................................................... 9 
Informing planning decisions .................................................................................... 11 
Contact Information .................................................................................................. 12 
Appendix 1: Glossary and Definitions ....................................................................... 13 
  

Page 24



1. 

 
2. 

 

3. 

 
4. 
 

 
5. 

 

 

Introd
This note
planning
which re
conjunct
• The A
• The A

B
• Natio

Guida

A numbe
appendix

When 
The Nati
centres1

centre us
an up to 
26). Cor

The figu

 

Where th
The Cou
submiss
applicati

 

              
1 Referenc
plans, suc

Se

Im

The ‘d
define
hierarc

duction 
e sets out 

g applicatio
equire a se
tion with: 
Adopted U
Adopted Lo

Both availab
onal Planni
ance. Avai

er of techn
x 1 which e

is a se
ional Plann
 by setting
ses which 
date Loca

e Strategy

re below in

he above a
uncil intend
ion of sequ
on to be va

                 
ces to ‘town 
ch as district 

quentia

mpact t

esignated 
d on the cu
chy of cent

good prac
ons for mai
quential an

Unitary Dev
ocal Plan C
ble at http:/
ing Policy 
ilable at ht

ical terms 
explains th

quentia
ning Policy

g out two ke
are not in 

al Plan – th
y Policy CS

ndicates w

apply, sequ
ds to amen
uential and
alidated an

 

               
centres’ in N
or local cent

al test

test

centres’  i
urrent UDP
tres set ou

tice guidan
n town cen
nd impact t

velopment 
Core Strate
//www.roth
Framewor
ttp://plannin

are used t
hese furthe

al or imp
y Framewo
ey tests tha
an existing

he sequent
S12 provide

hen the se

uential and
nd its plann
d impact te
nd subsequ

NPPF apply e
tres. 

• Propo
edge

• Propo
uses
edge

n Rotherha
P Proposal
ut in Core S

2 

nce to assi
ntre uses i
test asses

Plan (1999
egy (Septe
herham.go
rk and its a
ngguidanc

throughout
er. 

pact tes
ork support
at should b
g town cen
tial test and
es further g

equential a

d impact te
ning applic
ests (as ap
uently dete

equally to oth

osals for 
e of or out

osals for 
s of 500 s
e of or out

am are tow
ls Map, ha
Strategy Po

ist applican
n edge-of 
sment. It s

9)  
ember 201
v.uk/localp

accompany
ce.planning

t; however 

st requir
ts the viabi
be applied 
ntre and wh
d the impa
guidance.

and impact 

est assessm
ation valid
propriate)
ermined. 

her retail cen

town ce
tside of d

retail, le
sq m gros
tside of d

wn, distric
aving regar
olicy CS12

nts when s
or out-of-c

should be r

4) 
plan  
ying Planni
gportal.gov

a glossary

red? 
ility and vit
when plan

hich are no
ct test (par

tests are r

ments will 
ation policy
in order fo

ntres designa

ntre use
designate

eisure or 
ss or abov
designate

ct and loca
rd to the up
2.  

submitting 
centre loca
read in 

ing Practic
v.uk/  

y is provide

tality of tow
nning for to
ot in accord
ragraphs 2

required: 

be require
cy to requir
or any plan

ated in devel

es on the 
ed centres

office 
ve, on th

ed centres

al centres
pdated 

tions 

ce 

ed at 

wn 
own 
d with 
24 and 

d. 
e the 
ning 

opment 

s.

e 
s.

s as 

Page 25



3 
 

Agreeing the scope of the assessment 
6. In line with Core Strategy Policy CS12, applicants should agree with the Local 

Planning Authority the scope of the evidence and analysis to be submitted to ensure 
that this is proportionate to the scale and nature of the proposal. 

 

 
7. We provide and encourage use of our pre-application service2 which aims to increase 

the efficiency of the Council's planning process and to resolve any planning problems 
and issues with the applicants at an early stage, before the submission of a planning 
application. 

 
8. Where pre-application discussions have not taken place and the scope of 

assessment has not been agreed prior to submission of an application then further 
work may be required to any submitted assessment. This could delay determination 
of any planning application. 
 

9. Key to any discussions will be establishing the parameters of the scheme. This 
should include, but is not limited to: 

 

Size 
Size of the scheme, ideally in gross square metres. For retail 
proposals details of the net sales floorspace should also be 
provided. 
 

Type 
The type of floorspace (for example are retail proposals for 
food/non-food), and any suggested planning conditions (such as 
range of goods, unit sizes etc.) 
 

Characteristics 
The characteristics of the development (such as catchment area, 
target market), the site, broad layout principles and proposed 
levels of parking. 
 

Operator 
details 

Where proposals are not for speculative development details 
should be provided of the prospective operator(s) 
 

Business 
model / 

locational 
requirements 

Details of any elements of the prospective operator(s) business 
model which have a bearing on site requirements.  
Why is the development required to be located on the proposed 
site / in a particular area of Rotherham? Is the development 
meeting an identified need in a particular area? Does the user 
have certain building or site requirements? This might be in terms 
of layout, access or market requirements. 
 

 
  
                                            
2 There may be a charge for this service depending upon the scale of the proposal. For more 
information please see our website: 
http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/info/200074/planning_and_regeneration/513/get_help_with_a_planning_
application/4  

The Council supports early engagement with applicants which would allow 
the scope of any sequential / impact test assessment to be agreed. 

Page 26



10. 

 
11. 

12. 

 
13. 

 
14. 

 
15. 

 
16. 

 

Carryi
National
sequenti
and 12: 
vitality-o

There ar
 

 
These a
 
Establi
Establish
determin

The catc
on the sp
developm
characte

For exam
for a hot
than a m

Catchme
site (for 
determin
distance
developm

Catchme
artificially
 
 

1. Estab

2

ing out 
 Planning 
ial test; in 
http://plann
f-town-cen

re four key

re conside

ishing an
hing the ca
ning which 

chment is t
pecific dev
ment, the m
eristics of t

mple, the c
tel. Similar

mass marke

ents may b
example, a

ned by esti
es or drive 
ment. 

ents may e
y ‘clipped’ 

blish the a

2. Decide w

3. Ide
be co

a seque
Practice G
particular “
ningguidan
ntres/ensur

y steps to fo

ered in mor

n approp
atchment o
centres sh

the area th
velopment 
market in w
he busines

catchment 
ly a more n
et operator

be defined 
a 1 mile ra
mating the
times whic

extend bey
to the boro

 

ppropriate

which desig

entify the s
onsidered

4. Undert
and viabi

ential te
Guidance se
“Ensuring t
nce.plannin
ring-the-vit

ollow in un

re detail be

priate cat
of the propo
hould form

e proposa
proposed,

which the d
ss / operato

for a smal
niche retai
r. 

in a numb
dius) or a 

e catchmen
ch are appr

yond the bo
ough boun

e catchmen

gnated cen

sequentiall

take anasse
lity of alter

4 

est 
ets out furt
the vitality 
ngportal.go
tality-of-tow

ndertaking

elow. 

tchment
osed deve
 part of the

al is intende
 and will n
developme
or model. 

l to medium
ler or use 

ber of ways
more deta
nt served b
ropriate wi

orough bou
ndary will n

nt for the d

ntres should

ly preferab

essment of
rnative site

ther guidan
of town ce

ov.uk/blog/
wn-centres

a sequent

t
elopment is
e assessm

ed to serve
eed to take

ent will ope

m sized foo
may draw 

s, such as a
iled drive t

by, say, a 1
ll depend o

undary; ca
not be cons

developme

d be assess

ble sites wh

f the suitab
es

nce on und
entres” par
/guidance/
s-guidance

ial test: 

s the first st
ent.  

e. This will 
e account 

erate and a

od outlet w
trade from

a simple d
time calcul
10 minute d
on the spe

tchments w
sidered acc

nt

sed 

hich should

bility, availa

dertaking t
ragraphs 8
/ensuring-t
e/  

tep in 

vary depe
of the size

any relevan

will differ to
m a wider a

istance fro
lation (whic
drive time)

ecific 

which are 
ceptable. 

d 

ability 

the 
, 11 
he-

ending 
e of 
nt 

o that 
rea 

om the 
ch is 
). The 

Page 27



5 
 

Deciding which designated centres should be assessed 
17. Having established an appropriate catchment, this can then be used to help 

determine the centres which should be assessed for sequentially preferable sites, in 
conjunction with details of the type and size of development. 

 
18. The centres to be considered are those town, district and local centres defined on the 

current UDP Proposals Map having regard to the updated hierarchy of centres set 
out in Core Strategy Policy CS12 and shown below: 

 
Hierarchy Centre(s) 
Principal Town Centre Rotherham Town Centre 
Town Centre Dinnington, Maltby, Wath-upon-Dearne 
District Centre Kiveton Park, Parkgate, Swallownest, Swinton, Wickersley 

 
19. Once finalised the Sites and Policies document will set out new boundaries for town, 

district and local centres and replace those identified on the UDP Proposals Map. 
 

20. Where the catchment extends beyond the borough boundary then the relevant local 
authorities should be contacted to determine which centres should be included within 
any sequential test and impact test.  

 
21. Depending upon the development proposed it may be appropriate that all designated 

centres within the catchment should be assessed. Alternatively it may be appropriate 
for the assessment to be restricted to higher order centres. For example a larger 
supermarket or retail operator will be more appropriately directed towards town or 
district centres. Consideration will therefore be given to the catchment of the 
proposed development and the catchment area served by particular centres. 
 

22. This recognises the different role that centres within the retail hierarchy play: 
 

Principal town 
centre & town 

centres 

The borough’s main retail, commercial and civic centre which 
serves the whole borough, and other larger centres which serve a 
wider area. Function as important service centres, providing a 
range of facilities and services for extensive catchment areas 
 

District 
centres 

Centres which may serve a more than local need. Usually 
comprise groups of shops often containing at least one 
supermarket or superstore, and a range of non-retail services, 
such as banks, building societies and restaurants, as well as local 
public facilities such as a library. 
 

Local centres 

Local centres include a range of small shops of a local nature, 
serving a small catchment. Typically, local centres might include, 
amongst other shops, a small supermarket, a newsagent, a sub-
post office and a pharmacy. Other facilities could include a hot-
food takeaway and launderette. In rural areas, large villages may 
perform the role of a local centre. 
 

 
29. Retail parks are not classed as centres for the application of the sequential test. The 

exception to this is for proposals involving bulky goods uses. This is discussed further 
in paragraphs 38 and 39. 

Page 28



6 
 

Identifying the sites to be considered  
30. Where the proposed development is in an out-of-centre or edge-of-centre location 

then the assessment should consider sequentially preferable sites – i.e. first those 
within designated centres and then, if these are unavailable, suitable or viable, sites 
in an edge-of-centre location. National Planning Practice Guidance indicates that 
preference should be given to accessible sites that are well connected to the centre. 

 
31. Establishing whether a proposal is in an edge of or out-of-centre location will depend 

on the specific type of development proposed. The table below provides a summary 
of how edge-of-centre locations will be defined: 

 

Retail uses Office uses All other main 
town centre uses 

Edge-of-centre 

Well connected and 
up to 300 metres of 
the primary shopping 
area. 

Outside the town, 
district or local 
centre but within 
500 metres of a 
public transport 
interchange. 

A location within 
300 metres of a 
town, district or local 
centre boundary. 

In determining whether a site falls within the definition of edge-of-
centre, account should be taken of local circumstances. For 
example, local topography, barriers, such as crossing major roads 
and car parks, the attractiveness and perceived safety of the route 
and the strength of attraction and size of the town centre. 

 

Town, district 
and local centre 

boundaries 

Defined on the UDP 
Proposals Map; refer to the 
retail centre hierarchy in Core 
Strategy Policy CS12. 
 

Town, district and local centre 
boundaries will be redefined 
through the Local Plan Sites and 
Policies document. 

Primary shopping 
areas 

Defined as “Prime Shopping 
Streets” in the UDP. Refer to 
maps 1 to 12 in Chapter 7 of 
the UDP written statement. 
 

New primary and secondary 
shopping frontages will be defined 
for town and district centres 
through the Local Plan Sites and 
Policies document. For local 
centres the centre boundary 
should be considered as the 
primary shopping area with regard 
to retail proposals. 

 
32. The choice of sites to consider (including vacant premises or undeveloped sites) will 

depend on a number of key factors: 
• The size of the proposed development 
• The operator’s business model 
• scope for flexibility in the format and/or scale of the proposal 

 
33. The National Planning Practice Guidance notes that certain main town centre uses 

have particular market and locational requirements which mean that they may only 
be accommodated in specific locations. It emphasises that robust justification must 
be provided where this is the case, and land ownership does not provide such a 
justification. Where this is the case for proposed development it should inform the 
parameters of the assessment as discussed at paragraph 9 above. 

Page 29



7 
 

 
34. National policy indicates that applicants and local planning authorities should 

demonstrate flexibility on issues such as format and scale. National Planning Practice 
Guidance indicates that it is not necessary to demonstrate that a potential town 
centre or edge-of-centre site can accommodate precisely the scale and form of 
development being proposed, but rather to consider what contribution more central 
sites are able to make individually to accommodate the proposal. 
 

35. The purpose behind this is to seek wherever appropriate to accommodate new 
development within town centres; making effective and efficient use of previously 
developed land, ensuring development is located in accessible locations, and 
securing new investment. Flexibility could be achieved through the amendment of 
‘standard’ business model requirements to incorporate innovative design, such as 
multi level stores, and/or through shared or multi level car parking and innovative 
servicing solutions. 
 

36. The Council can advise on sites which it considers should form part of the 
assessment. It also undertakes regular monitoring of town and district centres 
including identifying vacant premises. This data is available on request from the 
Council and may help identify sites or premises which should be assessed.  
 

37. Where centres within other local authority areas are being considered, the relevant 
Council(s) may also be able to assist in identifying sites for assessment or providing 
any relevant monitoring data. 

 
38. In the case of proposals for bulky goods floorspace Core Strategy Policy CS12 

indicates that once sites within and then on the edge of town, district or local centres 
have been assessed and it can be demonstrated that they are not available, suitable 
or viable for the proposed development, and then the availability, suitability and 
viability of vacant premises in retail parks to accommodate the proposed 
development should be assessed. 

 
39. Retail Warehouse Parks are identified on the adopted UDP Proposals Map. Retail 

Parks will be further refined as part of preparing the Local Plan Sites and Policies 
document. 

 
  

Page 30



8 
 

Undertaking the assessment 
40. Core strategy Policy CS12 indicates that the sequential test should demonstrate that 

alternative sites are not available, suitable or viable for the proposed development. 
 
41. The assessment of each site should therefore consider: 

 

Availability 

Whether sites are available now or are likely to become available for 
development within a reasonable period of time (determined on the 
merits of a particular case, having regard, for example, to the urgency 
of the need). Where sites become available unexpectedly after receipt 
of an application, this will be taken into account in the assessment of 
proposals. It will not be appropriate for an applicant to dismiss a more 
sequentially preferable site on the basis that it is not available to the 
developer/retailer in question. 
 

Suitability 

With due regard to the requirements to demonstrate flexibility, whether 
sites are suitable to accommodate the need or demand which the 
proposal is intended to meet. The following factors are likely to be 
relevant when assessing whether a site offers a suitable location for 
development:  
• Policy restrictions – such as designations, protected areas, 

existing planning policy and corporate, or community strategy 
policy.  

• Physical problems or limitations – such as access, infrastructure, 
ground conditions, flood risk, hazardous risks, pollution or 
contamination.  

• Potential impacts – including effects on landscape features and 
conservation.  

• The environmental conditions – which would be experienced by 
potential users of the proposal. 
 

Viability 

Whether there is a reasonable prospect that development will occur 
on the site at a particular point in time. Again the importance of 
demonstrating the viability of alternatives depends in part on the 
nature of the need and the timescale over which it is to be met. 
 
Relevant considerations could include market factors (such as 
attractiveness of the locality and level of potential market demand), 
cost factors (such as site preparation costs and any exceptional works 
necessary) and delivery factors (such as phasing and build out rates). 
 

 
43. If the applicant asserts that the proposal is, by its nature, locationally specific, and 

cannot be accommodated in a more central location, or that it is not possible to adopt 
a flexible approach to accommodate the development more centrally, it will be 
necessary to clearly justify this position. 
 
  

Page 31



44. 

 
45. 

 
46. 

47. 

48. 

49. 

 

Carryi
Core Str
500 sq m
accompa
• the im

inves
• the im

cons

National
impact te
17 and 1
the-vitali

This incl
this is fo
all main 

 

 
Conside
could un
preferab
more ce
 
In under
impacts 
submitte
to five ye
 
Where p
warehou
sector, n
vitality a
 

Esta

ing out 
rategy Poli
m gross or 
anied by a
mpact of th
stment in c
mpact of th
umer choic

 Planning 
est; in part
18: http://p
ity-of-town

udes a che
cused on r
town centr

ration will 
ndermine th
ble location
ntral site. 

rtaking an i
for assess

ed. In line w
ears for mo

proposals r
use) it may
notwithstan
nd viability

Set o

blish base y

an imp
cy CS12 id
above, on
n impact a

he proposa
centres in t
he proposa
ce and trad

Practice G
ticular “Ens
lanninggui
-centres/e

ecklist for a
retail propo
re uses. Th

be given to
he viability

ns, or preju

impact ass
sment, and
with nation
ost scheme

relate to a 
y be approp
nding the n
y of town ce

out the likely

Co

Assess

Exa

Determine

year and ba

act test
dentifies th
 the edge 

assessmen
al on existin
he catchm

al on the vit
de. 

Guidance se
suring the v
dance.plan
nsuring-the

applying th
osals and n
he steps a

o whether 
and contr
dice the po

sessment t
d level of de
al guidanc
es, or up to

specific typ
priate to fo
need to con
entres.  

y impact alo

onsider a ran

s the propos

amine the ‘n

appropriat

seline evide
sho

9 

t 
hat proposa
of or outsid

nt. This sho
ng, commi

ment area o
tality and v

ets out furt
vitality of t
nningporta
e-vitality-o

he impact t
not all step
re summa

the impact
ribution of s
otential to 

the Counci
etail requir

ce impact s
o ten years

pe of good
ocus the im
nsider the 

ong with an

nge of plaus

sal’s turnov

no developm

te time fram

ence of exis
opping patte

als for reta
de of desig
ould consid
tted and p

of the propo
viability of 

ther guidan
own centre

al.gov.uk/bl
f-town-cen

test, althou
ps may be 
rised below

t of a new 
schemes in
secure fur

l will seek 
red in adva
should be c
s for major

ds (for exam
mpact asses

impact of t

ny assumpti

sible scenar

ver and trad

ment’ scena

me for asses

sting centre
erns

ail, leisure o
gnated cen
der: 
lanned pub
osal; and 
centres, in

nce on und
es” paragra
log/guidan

ntres-guida

ugh it is ac
appropriat

w:  

out-of-cen
n more seq
rther develo

to agree th
ance of app
considered
r schemes.

mple a DIY
ssment on
the propos

ons or reas

rios

e draw

ario

sing impact

s and the n

or office us
ntres, must

blic and pr

ncluding loc

dertaking t
aphs 13, 1

nce/ensurin
ance/ 

cknowledge
te for use w

ntre develo
quentially 
opment on

he scope, 
plications b
d over time
. 

Y retail 
n that spec
sal on the o

oning

t

nature of cu

ses of 
t be 

rivate 

cal 

the 
5, 16, 

ng-

ed that 
with 

pment 

n a 

key 
being 

e: up 

ific 
overall 

rrent 

Page 32



10 
 

50. If unconditional consent is sought for retail or other uses, i.e. with no limitation on net 
sales area, unit sizes, range of goods etc, then the supporting assessment should 
examine all of the potential impacts and policy compliance of the full range of 
possible permutations which would be permitted under the proposed planning 
permission.  
 

51. In assessing the impact of the proposal on existing, committed and planned public 
and private investment, consideration should be given to a range of factors including: 

 What stage they have reached e.g. are they contractually committed? 
 The policy ‘weight’ attached to them e.g. are they a key provision of the 

development plan? 
 Whether there is sufficient ‘need’ for both? 
 Whether they are competing for the same market opportunity, or key 

retailers/occupiers? 
 Whether there is evidence that retailers/investors/developers are concerned; and 
 Whether the cumulative impact of both schemes would be a cause for concern. 

 
52. Where the catchment extends into other local authority areas the relevant Council(s) 

may also be able to assist in identifying factors which should be taken into account in 
any assessment, and providing any relevant information, such as monitoring data, 
retail and leisure studies, or town centre health check data. 

 
53. Rotherham’s most recent retail and leisure studies should provide a starting point to 

inform any impact assessment. Currently these consist of: 
• The 2010 Rotherham Town Centre Retail and Leisure Study 
• The 2011 Rotherham Retail and Leisure Study (borough-wide, excluding 

Rotherham town centre) 
 
These are available on our website at http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/localplan 

  
54. These studies include quantitative and qualitative data on retail floorspace 

requirements, leisure uses and also health checks of the borough’s centres. It is 
acknowledged that these may need to be supplemented by more up to date where 
this is available, either from the Council or as provided by the applicant. 

 
  

Page 33



11 
 

Informing planning decisions 
55. In line with the NPPF and Core Strategy Policy CS33, the Council will take a positive 

approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development. We will 
work with applicants to find solutions which mean that proposals can be approved 
wherever possible, and to secure development that improves the economic, social 
and environmental conditions in the area. 
 

56. Wherever possible the Council will provide advice, guidance and data to applicants to 
assist in the preparation of sequential and impact assessments. The submitted 
assessments will be taken into account in determining planning applications. The 
failure to undertake a sequential or impact assessment can be a reason for refusal of 
planning permission. 
 

57. NPPF paragraph 27 states that “Where an application fails to satisfy the sequential 
test or is likely to have significant adverse impact on one or more of the above 
factors, it should be refused.” Equally, compliance with the sequential and impact 
tests does not guarantee that permission will be granted – the Council will consider 
all material considerations in reaching a decision. 

 
58. Where it is minded to grant planning permission, the Council may impose planning 

conditions to manage the impacts of development. The use of conditions will be 
appropriate where the consequences of certain types of development could lead to 
unacceptable impacts or have not been fully tested, and will be informed by the 
assessment of sequential and impact tests. For example, where retail proposals have 
been assessed based upon a particular scale of net sales floor space, and the impact 
and appropriateness of the scale of development has been judged acceptable, it will 
normally be appropriate to impose conditions restricting total net sales area 
permitted. 

 
59. Planning conditions could be used to: 

 Prevent developments from being sub divided into a number of smaller shops or 
units, or to secure the provision of units suitable for smaller businesses, by 
specifying the maximum size of units. 

 Ensure that ancillary elements remain ancillary to the main development. 
 Limit any internal alterations to increase the amount of gross floor space by 

specifying the maximum floor space permitted. 
 Limit the range of goods sold, and control the mix of convenience and comparison 

goods. 
 Resolve issues relating to the impact of the development on traffic and amenity of 

neighbouring residents, such as the timing of the delivery of goods to shops and 
the adequate provision for loading and unloading. 

 
  

Page 34



12 
 

Contact Information 
For further information please contact us using the details below. 
 
For planning policy queries: 
 
Email:  
 

planning.policy@rotherham.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01709 823869 
 

Post: Planning Policy, Rotherham MBC, Riverside House, Main Street, 
Rotherham, S60 1AE 
 

Website: www.rotherham.gov.uk/localplan  
 
Submit your query online at: 
www.rotherham.gov.uk/forms/form/57/en/planning_policy_team_message 
 

  
For planning application queries, including arranging pre-application 
discussions: 
 
Email:  
 

development.management@rotherham.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01709 382121 
 

Post: Development Management, Rotherham MBC, Riverside House, Main 
Street, Rotherham, S60 1AE 
 

Website: www.rotherham.gov.uk/info/200074/planning_and_regeneration 
 
Submit your query online at  
www.rotherham.gov.uk/forms/form/60/en/development_management_enquiries  
 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 35



13 
 

Appendix 1: Glossary and Definitions 
 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP): A document which is used to make decisions on 
proposals for development. The Rotherham UDP covers all the borough. The UDP 
will be replaced by Rotherham’s new Local Plan. 
 
Bulky Comparison goods: Large or bulky items such as DIY goods, furniture and 
floor coverings, major household appliances, audio-visual equipment and bicycles. 
 
Convenience goods: Low-cost, everyday items that consumers are unlikely to travel 
far to purchase such as food and non-alcoholic drinks, tobacco, alcohol, and 
newspapers 
 
Core Strategy: This forms part of the new Local Plan. It sets out the long-term 
spatial vision for the local planning authority area, the spatial objectives and strategic 
policies to deliver that vision.  
 
District centres: District centres will usually comprise groups of shops often 
containing at least one supermarket or superstore, and a range of non-retail services, 
such as banks, building societies and restaurants, as well as local public facilities 
such as a library. 
 
Impact test: ensures that the impact over of certain out-of-centre and edge-of-centre 
proposals on existing town centres is not significantly adverse. 
 
Local centres: Local centres include a range of small shops of a local nature, 
serving a small catchment. Typically, local centres might include, amongst other 
shops, a small supermarket, a newsagent, a sub-post office and a pharmacy. Other 
facilities could include a hot-food takeaway and launderette. In rural areas, large 
villages may perform the role of a local centre.  
 
Main town centre uses: Retail development (including warehouse clubs and factory 
outlet centres); leisure, entertainment facilities the more intensive sport and 
recreation uses (including cinemas, restaurants, drive-through restaurants, bars and 
pubs, night-clubs, casinos, health and fitness centres, indoor bowling centres, and 
bingo halls); offices; and arts, culture and tourism development (including theatres, 
museums, galleries and concert halls, hotels and conference facilities). 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: Sets out the government’s planning policies 
for England and how they are expected to be applied. It provides guidance for local 
planning authorities and decision-takers, both in drawing up plans and making 
decisions about planning applications. 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance: A web-based resource which provides 
further explanation and guidance in relation to the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
Non Bulky Comparison goods: Goods for which the consumer expects to visit a 
range of shops before making a choice, such as clothing, footwear, household goods 
and other non-food purchases 
 

Page 36



14 
 

Primary shopping area: Defined area where retail development is concentrated 
(generally comprising the primary and those secondary frontages which are adjoining 
and closely related to the primary shopping frontage). 
 
Primary shopping frontages: Primary frontages are likely to include a high 
proportion of retail uses which may include food, drinks, clothing and household 
goods. 
 
Secondary shopping frontages: Secondary frontages provide greater opportunities 
for a diversity of uses such as restaurants, cinemas and businesses. 
 
Sequential test: guides main town centre uses towards town centre locations first, 
then, if no town centre locations are available, to edge-of-centre locations, and, if 
neither town centre locations nor edge-of-centre locations are available, to out of 
town centre locations, with preference for accessible sites which are well connected 
to the town centre.  
 
Sites & Policies Document: This forms part of the new Local Plan. It will show 
specific development sites and contain policies to guide the release of land and 
design of new development. 
 
Small parades: Small parades of shops of purely neighbourhood significance which 
are not regarded as centres.   
 
Town centres: Town centres will usually be the second level of centres after city 
centres and, in many cases, they will be the principal centre or centres in a local 
authority’s area. In rural areas they are likely to be market towns and other centres of 
similar size and role which function as important service centres, providing a range of 
facilities and services for extensive rural catchment areas. In planning the future of 
town centres, local planning authorities should consider the function of different parts 
of the centre and how these contribute to its overall vitality and viability.  

Page 37



 

 
 

 
 
 

1. Meeting: 
Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways and Street 
Scene Services 

2. Date: 1st December 2014 

3. Title: 
Amendments to pedestrianisation orders 
Whinney Hill Dalton 

4. Directorate: Environment and Development Services 

 
5.   Summary 
 
To seek Cabinet Member approval to revoke existing pedestrianisation orders 
on parts of roads at Whinney Hill Dalton to create all purpose highway that will 
form part of a proposed new road layout for a new development in this part of 
Dalton. 

 
 

6.   Recommendations 
 

Cabinet Member is asked to resolve that an application be made to the 
Department for Transport to revoke the current pedestrianisation order made 
through the auspices of the Town and Country Planning Act, for the areas 
shown on the attached drawing number 126/17/TT303.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Page 38 Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

7. Proposals and Details   

In the late 1970s various roads within the housing estate bounded by Doncaster 
Road and Whinney Hill were pedestrianised under the Town and Country Planning 
Act.  The purpose being to create a road environment with less through routes and 
hence reduce the risk of pedestrian/vehicle collisions. 
 
The housing that was present on the site has subsequently been demolished and the 
site has been vacant for a number of years.  A developer is in discussions with the 
Council about redeveloping the site as a housing estate and their proposal requires 
the pedestrianised roads to become all purpose highways.  This does not mean that 
the estate will be available to through traffic it is merely the case that their proposed 
estate roads coincide with the position of existing pedestrianised roads.  If the 
developer was applying to remove highway status through the Town and Country 
Planning Act they would be able to make the application themselves but as they are 
seeking to amend a restriction on an existing highway then this is something that can 
only be undertaken by the Highway Authority; in this case Rotherham Borough 
Council.  The application is therefore more a procedural matter that in reality will 
have little impact on the current environment other than to assist with its potential 
redevelopment. 
 
8. Finance 
The developer has indicated that they will fund the cover our costs regardless of 
whether the development goes ahead or not. 

 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
Failure to remove the pedestrianisation orders will mean that the developer will have 
to reconsider the layout of most of the proposed development thereby affecting 
potential delivery.  

 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
The proposals are in line with objectives set out in the Sheffield City Region 
Transport Strategy / Local Transport Plan 3; policy W to encourage safer road use 
and reduce casualties on our roads”,  

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
Appendix A, Plan number 128/17/TT303 showing the existing pedestrianised 
highways to become all purpose highway. 
 
 
Contact Name: Andrew Butler Senior Engineer, Ext 22968 

Page 39



Page 40



 

 
 

 
 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive 

Neighbourhoods 

2.  Date: 1st December 2014 

3.  Title: Ravenfield Primary School, Moor Lane North 
Proposed trial of a part-time 20mph speed limit 
Ward 14 (Silverwood Ward) 

4.  Directorate: Economic and Development Services 

 
 
5. Summary 

To report a proposal to trial an advisory part-time 20 mph speed limit outside 
Ravenfield Primary School, Moor Lane North, Ravenfield. 

 
 
6. Recommendations 

It is recommended that Cabinet Member resolves that: 
 

i) authority be given for the detailed design to be carried out and, subject 
to no objections being received, for the scheme to be implemented as a 
trial; 
 

ii) the scheme be funded from the Council’s 2014/15 Capital Programme 
for converting existing traffic calmed areas to 20 mph. 

 
iii) following an initial 6 months of operation that the effectiveness of the 

advisory part-time 20 mph speed limit be reviewed in order to inform 
the potential further use of this type of scheme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Page 41 Agenda Item 12



 

 
 

7. Proposals and Details 
During October this year a meeting was held between council officers and John 
Healey MP about concerns being expressed by the parents of children who attend 
Ravenfield School in relation to the speed of vehicles along Moor Lane North during 
pupil arrival and leaving times. Moor Lane North is currently subject to a 40mph 
speed limit.  These concerns were also being expressed by staff at the school. 
 
Following a revision to the Department for Transport’s guidance relating to the 
setting of local speed limits in 2013, traffic authorities in England were given special 
authorisation to place advisory part-time 20mph speed limit signs, with flashing 
school warning lights on roads that are not suitable for a full-time 20mph zone or 
limit, and a decision was made to investigate this as a possible option for use on 
Moor Lane North. 
 
The Council’s policy on 20 mph Speed Limits was endorsed by Cabinet on 15th 
January this year. It states: 
 
“Variable 20 mph speed limits can be introduced that apply only at certain times of 
day.  These are particularly relevant where for example a school is located on a road 
that is not suitable for a full-time 20 mph zone or limit, such as a major through road. 
To indicate these limits, variable message signs have to be used.” 

 
There are currently no schemes of this type in Rotherham, and the reliability of the 
signs required can be an issue in some situations, and the effect on speeds may not 
be great.  However, as it is considered that as Moor Lane North would be unsuitable 
for a permanent 20 mph speed limit we recommend that a trial of an advisory part-
time 20 mph speed limit is undertaken. 
 
The scheme would involve the installation of new signing on both approaches to 
Ravenfield Primary School indicating a maximum speed of 20 mph when lights 
show.  This speed limit will be of an advisory nature and will not require a Traffic 
Regulation Order to be processed prior to implemented, allowing the measures to be 
installed within a relatively short timescale. 
 
Each sign installation will include one set of flashing amber warning lights activated 
during the morning and afternoon pupil arrival and leaving times to indicate the 
reduced speed limit and increase motorist awareness of pedestrians in the area.  
Appendix A attached shows the approximate location of the proposed signs together 
with an example of the permitted signing.  
 
Previous assessments of this site by officers during pupil arrival and leaving times 
have indicated that existing vehicle speeds outside the school are relatively low due 
to the narrow width of the carriageway, the presence of parked vehicles, and the 
different vehicle manoeuvres taking place.  As a consequence, the overall effect of 
these works on reducing vehicle speeds is likely to be lessened, compared to other 
locations around the borough, where there is a greater free-flow of vehicles. 
 
As this will be the first time that an advisory part-time 20 mph speed limit will have 
been used in Rotherham, following the first 6 months of operation the effectiveness 
of the scheme will be reviewed.  In order to accurately determine the effect of this 
scheme on reducing vehicle speeds, arrangements have been put in place for a 7 

Page 42



 

 
 

day speed survey to be undertaken prior to any works being implemented.  This 
would be followed up by further surveys once the scheme has been place for a 
period of time.  The review will also include feedback from the school and  other 
interested parties and will be used to inform whether the works have been a 
success, or not, and wider use at other potential sites. 

 
8. Finance 
Funding for the proposed scheme will come from the Councils 2014/15 Capital 
Programme for converting existing traffic calmed areas to 20 mph and is estimated 
to cost £3,500, including amendments to the existing signing. 

 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
Consultations are currently taking place with Local Ward Members and Ravenfield 
Parish Council with regard to this scheme, the outcome of which should be received 
by the end of November this year. Should any objections be received they will be 
reported verbally to the meeting. 
 
In addition, we have also been made aware of a petition that has been set up in 
relation to reducing the speed limit outside Ravenfield School, and this may have a 
bearing on the proposed works.  This petition will be reported to Cabinet Member 
separately. 
 
This type of scheme will be the first for Rotherham; therefore, its effectiveness in 
achieving a reduction in vehicle speeds over time is unknown.  However, speed 
surveys will be undertaken both pre and post scheme implementation.  The 
implementation of this scheme could potentially result in a number other requests 
from around the borough.  Additionally, this type of scheme will not be suitable for 
use outside all schools and this will have to be borne in mind when looking at other 
locations.  The review of this trial will be used to determine its appropriateness at 
other locations in Rotherham. 
 

10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
The proposed scheme is in line with the Council’s objectives of achieving safer 
roads and encouraging walking and also accords with the Equalities Policy. 

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation  
As part of our process for implementing schemes on the highway, consultation 
letters have been sent to South Yorkshire Police, Local Ward Members and 
Ravenfield Parish Council regarding the proposals, in which we are seeking their 
support for implementing the scheme.  At the time of submitting this report South 
Yorkshire Police have confirmed that they have no objections to the proposed 
scheme.  Responses from Local Ward Members and Ravenfield Parish Council are 
expected in due course.  Upon completion of our current consultation, details of our 
proposals will be discussed with the head teacher for Ravenfield Primary School. 

 
Contact Name : Andrew Lee, Assistant Engineer, Ext. 54489, 
andrew.lee@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 43



Proposed location of part-time

20mph speed limit signing

Proposed location of part-time

20mph speed limit signing

T
o
w

a
rd

s
 R

a
v
e
n
fi
e
ld

 c
ro

s
s
ro

a
d
s

T

o

w

a

r

d

s

 

O

l
d

 

R

a

v

e

n

f

i
e

l
d

N

Client:

Title

Dwg. No. Scales

Drawn Date Chd. by

Rev.

Rev. Description

(if A3)

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council

Environment & Development Services

Riverside House, Main Street,

Rotherham       S60 1AE

Karl Battersby Bsc (Hons) MTPL MRTPI

Strategic Director: 

Example of proposed part-time 20mph
speed limit signing (layout will vary slightly
due to site constraints on Moor Lane North

Ravenfield School, Moor Lane North

Proposed part-time 20mph speed limit

126/46/TT101 1:1250

A.L. November 2014

Appendix 'A'
P

age 44



 

 
 

 
 

1. Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive 
Neighbourhoods. 
 

2. Date: 1st December 2014 

3. Title: Proposed ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ – Fitzwilliam 
Street, Festival Road, Stump Cross Road, Cross 
Street & Fitzwilliam Avenue, Wath upon Dearne. 

4. Directorate: Environment and Development Services 

 
 

5. Summary 
To seek Cabinet Member approval not to accede to six objections to the 
proposed introduction of no waiting at any time waiting restrictions on Fitzwilliam 
Street, Festival Road, Stump Cross Road, Cross Street & Fitzwilliam Avenue, 
Wath upon Dearne. 
 
6. Recommendations 

 
It is recommended Cabinet Member resolve that: 
 
i) The objections to the proposed scheme be not acceded to. 
 
ii) The objectors be informed of the decision and the reasons why. 
 
iii) The Director of Legal and Democratic service makes the proposed 

Traffic Regulation Order as advertised. 
  

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Page 45 Agenda Item 13



 

 
 

7. Proposals and Details 
 
 
The proposed introduction of ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions around the 
junctions of Fitzwilliam Street, Festival Road, Stump Cross Road, Cross Street & 
Fitzwilliam Avenue, Wath upon Dearne is in response to a significant number of 
complaints regarding parking around the junctions during school drop off and pick up 
times; a request has also been received from South Yorkshire Police (SYP) via the 
Wentworth North Safer Neighbourhood Team (SNT).  Parking at these locations has 
caused obstruction to driveways, and footways thereby causing pedestrians to be 
diverted from their desired line of travel and walk into the carriageway and has also 
seriously reduced visibility at junctions  
 
 
Due to this parking it is proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions 
on the above junctions to aid with the free and safe movement of traffic at these 
locations and to assist with the safe passage of pedestrians on the footway. 
Proposed waiting restrictions are shown on the attached Drawing Number 
126/18/TT599. 
 
In order to deter parking at these locations it is proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at 
Any Time’ restrictions on both sides of the junctions to a minimum distance of 10 
metres.  The proposed waiting restrictions are shown on the attached Drawing 
Number 126/18/TT599 (Appendix 2). 
 
Consultation with Statutory Consultees and Ward Members took place on the 10th 
April 2014, with no objections received.  The proposed Traffic Regulation Order 
(TRO) was advertised on street and in the Rotherham Advertiser on 9th May 2014.  
In addition consultation letters were also sent to residential properties adjacent to the 
proposed restrictions.  Six objections were received in response to this proposal.  
The objections were made on the grounds that the proposal would seriously reduce 
available parking for residents at this location, and would also displace parked 
vehicles closer to resident’s properties; copies of these objections are attached as 
Appendix 3. 
 
After a site meeting with officers from the SNT and further consultation with Ward 
Councillors an amended proposal was produced (Appendix 2a) which would reduce 
the number/length of restrictions to a minimum whilst still ensuring that the junctions 
most affected by this type of parking are kept clear.  Therefore we recommend partly 
acceding to the residents objections to the original scheme and propose 
implementing the amendments shown in Appendix 2a. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 46



 

 
 

 
8. Finance. 

Minimal cost associated with the introduction of the yellow lines. 
 

 
 

9. Risks and Uncertainties 
Should the objection be acceded to and the proposed restrictions not be 
implemented then obstruction of the junctions and footways at this location 
will continue with the result that pedestrians will be prevented from safely 
using footways and drivers from safely exiting the junctions. 

 
 

10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 

 
 

11. Background Papers and Consultation 
Ward Members have been consulted; and all broadly support the Councils 
views on this matter, 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Contact Name:  Marc Hill. Ext 22814 
 marc.hill@rotherham.gov.uk 

 

Page 47



Appendix 1 - Location of proposed restrictions
09 October 2014
14:22

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 48



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Appendix 3 (objection 1)
07 October 2014
09:38

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 52



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 53



Appendix 3 (objection 2)
07 October 2014
09:51

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 54



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 55



   Unfiled Notes Page 3    

Page 56



Appendix 3 (objection 3)
07 October 2014
09:47

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 57



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 58



Appendix 3 (objection 4)
07 October 2014
09:55

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 59



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 60



Appendix 3 (objection 5)
07 October 2014
09:58

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 61



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 62



Appendix 3 (objection 6)
07 October 2014
10:02

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 63



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 64



Appendix 3 (reply to objection 4)
07 October 2014
10:06

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 65



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 66



   Unfiled Notes Page 3    

Page 67



 

 
 

 
 

1. Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive 
Neighbourhoods. 
 

2. Date: 1st December 2014 

3. Title: Proposed ‘ No Waiting at any Time’ and’ Limited Time 
Waiting’ restrictions, Worrygoose Lane, Reresby 
Drive & Lathe Road, Whiston 

4. Directorate: Environment and Development Services 

 
 

5. Summary 
To seek Cabinet Member approval not to accede to objections to the proposed 
introduction of ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ and ‘Limited Time waiting’ restrictions on 
Worrygoose Lane, Reresby Drive and Lathe Road, Whiston 
 
6. Recommendations 

 
It is recommended Cabinet Member resolves that: 
 
i) The objections to the proposed scheme be not acceded to. 
 
ii) The objectors be informed of the decision and the reasons why. 
 
iii) The Director of Legal and Democratic service makes the proposed 

Traffic Regulation Order as advertised. 
  

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Page 68 Agenda Item 14



 

 
 

7. Proposals and Details 
 
 
The proposed introduction of ‘Time Limited’ waiting restrictions on Worrygoose Lane 
is as a result of a petition received by the Transportation and Highways Unit in 2008 
and concerned traffic problems on B6410 Worrygoose Lane at Whiston near to the 
shops; the petition was reported to the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and 
Development Services on the 19th May 2008.  It was decided to introduce a time 
limited waiting bay in the lay-by adjacent the Worrygoose Lane shops to have a 
constant turnover of parked vehicles for the shops, thereby preventing vehicles from 
being parked all day. Drawing number 126/18/TT473 (Appendix 2) illustrates the 
extent of the proposed ‘1 hour no return within 3 hours’ Monday to Saturday, 9am to 
4pm time limited waiting restrictions proposed in the parking bays on Worrygoose 
Lane. 
 
Additionally the Transportation and Highways Unit has received a significant number 
of complaints from local residents regarding the number of vehicles parking on the 
junctions of Worrygoose Lane/Reresby Drive and Worrygoose Lane/Lathe Road.  
Parking at these locations has caused obstruction to driveways, and footways 
thereby causing pedestrians to be diverted from their desired line of travel and walk 
into the carriageway and has also seriously reduced visibility at junctions.  
 
In order to deter parking at these locations it is proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at 
Any Time’ restrictions (double yellow lines) on both sides of the junction of 
Worrygoose Lane/Reresby Drive to a minimum distance of 10 metres and ‘Time 
Limited Waiting’ restrictions (single yellow line) Monday to Friday 8am to 6pm, 
extending from Worrygoose Lane in to Lathe road by approximately 70 metres 
These proposed waiting restrictions are also shown on the attached Drawing 
Number 126/18/TT473 (Appendix 2). 
 
Consultation with Statutory Consultees and Ward Members took place on the 13th 
February 2014, with no objections received.  The proposed Traffic Regulation Order 
(TRO) was advertised on street and in the Rotherham Advertiser on 2nd May 2014.  
In addition consultation letters were also sent to residential properties and local 
businesses adjacent to the proposed restrictions.  
 
2 objections were received in response to this proposal. The objections were made 
on the grounds that the proposal would seriously reduce available parking for 
residents on Lathe Road and customers and staff at the local shops. Concerns were 
also raised that the restrictions would displace parked vehicles closer to other 
residential properties; copies of these objections are attached as Appendix 3. 
Additionally 3 letters of support were received; however they stated that they would 
prefer to see the time limited restriction on Lathe Road increased from Monday to 
Friday 8am to 6pm to Monday to Saturday 8am to 6pm (letters of support included in 
Appendix 3).  It is not proposed to extend the hours during which the proposed single 
yellow line will operate to include Saturday.  There are adjacent single yellow lines 
that operate Monday-Friday and it is proposed to introduce the additional single 
yellow lines on the same basis for consistency. 
 
 

Page 69



 

 
 

8. Finance. 
Minimal cost associated with the introduction of the yellow lines. 

 
 

9. Risks and Uncertainties 
Should the objection be acceded to and the proposed restrictions not be 
implemented then all day parking on Worrygoose Lane adjacent to the shops 
will continue, this will result in shorter term parking being displaced in to 
residential areas causing obstruction of the junctions and footways at this 
location with the result that pedestrians will be prevented from safely using 
footways and drivers from safely exiting the junctions. 

 
 

10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 

Ward Members have been consulted; and all broadly support the Councils 
views on this matter, 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Contact Name:  Marc Hill. Ext 22814 
 marc.hill@rotherham.gov.uk 

 

Page 70



Appendix 1 - Location of Proposed restrictions
13 November 2014
10:08

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 71



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 72



Page 73



Appendix 3 letter of support 1
13 November 2014
10:56

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 74



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 75



Appendix 3 letter of support 2
13 November 2014
11:04

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 76



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 77



Appendix 3 Letter of support 3
13 November 2014
11:07

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 78



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 79



Appendix 3 Objection 1
08 October 2014
10:02

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 80



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 81



Appendix 3 Objection 2
13 November 2014
11:01

   Unfiled Notes Page 1    

Page 82



   Unfiled Notes Page 2    

Page 83



 

 
 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive 

Neighbourhoods 

2.  Date: 
01 December 2014 

3.  Title: Consultant support to assist the Council to make a 
funding application to Sheffield City Region 
Investment Fund for the Waverley Link Road. 

4.  Directorate: 
Environment and Development Services 

 
 
5.  Summary 

To seek an exemption to Councils Standing Orders in accordance with Standing 
Order 38 (exemptions) so that Systra can be commissioned to assist the Council 
to make a funding application to the Sheffield City Region Infrastructure Fund for 
the Waverley Link Road.   

 
6.  Recommendations 
 

Cabinet Member is asked to resolve that: 
 

i) An exemption from Standing Order 47 (requirement for contracts 
valued at less than £50,000) be granted and the Council 
commission Systra to support the Council to make a funding 
application to the Sheffield City Region Investment Fund for the 
Waverley Link Road 

 
 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Page 84 Agenda Item 15



 

7.  Proposals and Details 
The Council together with Sheffield City Council (SCC), as lead authority, had an 
OJEU procured Strategic Multi Modal Transport Modelling Framework Agreement 
with MVA Consultancy Ltd (now Systra) which expired on 23 December 2011. 
This agreement was the subject of a report to Cabinet Member on 4 April 2011, 
minute number 118 refers.  
 
Given the uncertainty around Central Government guidance on developing major 
transport schemes and the proposal to devolve funding for such schemes to 
Local Enterprise Partnerships no decision was made on a replacement 
Framework Contract for Multi Modal Transport Modelling. This means that the 
Council does not currently have access to the Multi Modal Transport Model.  
 
Major scheme transport funding has now been devolved to the Local Economic 
Partnership (LEP) for the Sheffield City Region (SCR) and has been incorporated 
into the Sheffield City Region Infrastructure Fund (SCRIF). This aim of this fund is 
to deliver essential strategic infrastructure to increase economic growth and jobs 
in the Sheffield City Region. 
 
In July 2013 the SCR Local Transport Body published a list of prioritised 
schemes which would have the biggest impact on jobs and economy in the SCR. 
The Waverley Link Road (WLR) is one scheme of two schemes in Rotherham 
which appear on this list. The total funding available for our Lower Don Valley 
Waverley package is £51.1 million, which it is anticipated that we can start to 
draw down to implement the scheme from 2017 onwards. 
 
The next step in the SCRIF process is to make a Full Business Case application 
for the WLR. The information required for the application is similar in scope to 
that required for a Major Scheme funding bid to the Department for Transport and 
as such requires expertise in the modelling of major schemes which the Council 
do not possess. 
 
Systra currently host the Multi Modal Transport Model and until a decision is 
made on the future of the Framework Contract for Multi Modal Transport 
Modelling they are the only organisation who can currently operate and 
interrogate this model. 
 
Systra’s performance under the expired Framework Contract has been 
satisfactory and the contract was let under the OJEU procedure and represented 
value for money at the time.  As Systra are the only organisation who can 
currently undertake this work no further assessment of value for money has been 
undertaken. 

 
It is therefore requested that an exemption from Standing Order 47 (requirement 
for contracts valued up to £50,000) be granted and the Council commission 
Systra to support the Council to make a funding application to the Sheffield City 
Region Investment Fund for the WLR. 
 

 
 

Page 85



 

8.  Finance 
It is anticipated that the commission to undertake work in support of the funding 
application would cost in the region of £30,000. Funding for this work has been is 
available from the Local Transport Plan. 
 

9.  Risks and Uncertainties 
 As the Waverley New Community development progresses there will be 

increasing pressure on the surrounding highway network. WLR is proposed to 
relieve this pressure and if no bid is made traffic problems in the area would 
become worse.  

 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 

None. 
 

11. Background Papers and Consultation 
None. 

 
Contact Name:  Matthew Lowe, Engineer, 54490  
 matthew.lowe@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 86



 

 
 

 
 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive 

Neighbourhoods 

2.  Date: 1st December 2014 

3.  Title: Maintenance Contract for Buchanan Computing 
Accsmap Software 

4.  Directorate: Environment and Development Services 

 
 
5. Summary 

To seek an exemption to the Council’s Standing Orders in accordance with 
Standing Order 38 (exemptions) so that Buchanan Computing can be awarded the 
maintenance contract for their Accsmap software. 

 
 
6. Recommendations 

It is recommended that Cabinet Member resolves that: 
 

i) An exemption from Standing Order 47 (requirements for contracts 
valued at less than £50,000) be granted and the Council award the 
maintenance contract for the Accsmap computer software to Buchanan 
Computing; 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Page 87 Agenda Item 16



 

 
 

 
7. Proposals and Details 

Buchanan Computing’s Accsmap software is a map-based road collision analysis 
and database system. It is used to identify road safety problems and generate 
remedial road safety engineering schemes and road safety education initiatives. In 
addition to being used by Rotherham the software is also used by the other South 
Yorkshire local authorities, South Yorkshire Safety Cameras, South Yorkshire Police  
and the South Yorkshire Local Transport Plan Partnership, with Rotherham hosting 
the software on behalf of these partners. In order to guard against technical 
problems with the software an annual maintenance contract is entered into. In 
addition to providing technical support the contract also includes software upgrades. 
The current contract expires on 31st December 2014 and given that Buchanan 
Computing are the only company able to offer a maintenance contract on their 
software a suspension of standing orders is required to renew the contract.  

 
8. Finance 

The cost of renewing the maintenance contract is £7078.80. Funding for the contract 
will initially come from the Councils 2014/15 Revenue budget and will then be 
reclaimed from the South Yorkshire Safer Roads Partnership, i.e., there will be no 
net cost to the Council. 

 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 

Failure to renew the maintenance contract will mean there will be no technical 
support for the Accsmap Software from 1st January 2015. If any problems arise after 
this date the road safety activities of the Council and other Accsmap users in South 
Yorkshire will be compromised. 
 

10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
Accsmap software helps to achieve the road safety objectives of the Sheffield City 
Region Transport Strategy and the associated South Yorkshire Road Safety and 
Casualty Reduction Strategy. 

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation  

 None 
 

 
Contact Name : Stuart Savage, Senior Engineer, Ext. 22969, 
stuart.savage@rotheham.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 88



Document is Restricted

Page 89 Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 97
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 100 Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 3rd November, 2014.
	8 Petition - East Dene Park, Park Road, East Dene, Rotherham.
	9 Housing Investment Programme 2014/15 Budget Virements.
	Appendix A - P7 20.11.14

	10 Town Centre Sequential and Impact Tests: Good Practice Guidance.
	Appendix 1 Town Centre Tests Guidance

	11 Amendments to Pedestrianisation Orders - Whinney Hill Dalton.
	126-17-TT303--Whinney Hill-Ped Highway

	12 Ravenfield Primary School, Moor Lane North - proposed trial of a part-time 20mph speed limit.
	Appendix A

	13 Proposed 'No Waiting at Any Time' - Fitzwilliam Street, Festival Road, Stump Cross Road, Cross Street & Fitzwilliam Avenue, Wath upon Dearne.
	Appendix 1 - Location of proposed restrictions
	Appendix 2a original proposals
	Appendix 2b amended proposals
	Appendix 3 (objection 1)
	Appendix 3 (objection 2)
	Appendix 3 (objection 3)
	Appendix 3 (objection 4)
	Appendix 3 (objection 5)
	Appendix 3 (objection 6)
	Appendix 3 (reply to objection 4)

	14 Proposed ' No Waiting at any Time' and' Limited Time Waiting' restrictions, Worrygoose Lane, Reresby Drive & Lathe Road, Whiston.
	Appendix 1 - Location of Proposed restrictions
	Appendix 2 Proposals drawing
	Appendix 3 letter of support 1
	Appendix 3 letter of support 2
	Appendix 3 Letter of support 3
	Appendix 3 Objection 1
	Appendix 3 Objection 2

	15 Exemption from Standing Orders: -  Consultant support to assist the Council to make a funding application to Sheffield City Region Investment Fund for the Waverley Link Road.
	16 Exemption from Standing Orders - Maintenance Contract for Buchanan Computing Accsmap Software.
	18 Review of Supported temporary accommodation for Homeless Families and Young People.
	SYHA dispersed properties - handback. appendix 1

	19 Property Searches Litigation.

